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District. Firms are responsible for checking the website periodically for any updates or revisions 
to the RFP. All proposals will be considered valid and prices will be considered fixed for a period 

of sixty (60) days following submission. 
 
No business entity, including any agent of such entity, shall directly or indirectly contact any 

District Board of Education member immediately before or during the RFP process of any 
project on which the business entity intends to or has submitted a RFP. Any vendor violating this 
policy shall be deemed disqualified from the RFP. Should such contact come to light after the 

RFP is awarded and the entity was deemed the successful Responder, the Board reserves the 
right to cancel any contract awarded, in which case, the vendor shall be liable for any damage 

incurred by the district. The Board shall exercise its best judgment for the benefit of the dis trict 
in making a decision whether to proceed or not, depending on all of the facts and 
circumstances. 

 
Requests for Information 
 

Questions related to this RFP should be submitted in writing to Jessica Sulli, Contract 
Specialist, at jessica-sulli@scusd.edu no later than April 25, 2018. Specify ñRFP for Lease-
Leaseback Construction Services ï West Campus Core Academic Renovationò in the subject 
line. Responses to all questions received will be posted on the Districtôs website, 
http://www.scusd.edu/rfp no later than

mailto:jessica-sulli@scusd.edu
http://www.scusd.edu/rfp
https://bidders.e-builder.net/landing?bidpackageid=c5de5428-14e8-4fe8-8519-80d2348291b2
https://bidders.e-builder.net/landing?bidpackageid=c5de5428-14e8-4fe8-8519-80d2348291b2
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as all project information will be available only through e-Builder. If you need technical 
assistance, please contact technical support at e-Builder, (888) 288-5717, or support@e-
builder.net. You may also call the Contracts Office (916) 643-2464 for assistance. 

A.  Construction and Post-Construction Services 
 
The Contractor shall perform all work and obligations described in the Contract Documents, 

including the following construction and post-construction services: 
 
 1. Construction of the Project in accordance with the plans and specifications. 

2. Coordinate and expedite record drawings and specifications. 
3. Compile operations and maintenance manuals, warranties/guarantees, and 

certificates. 

4. Prepare final accounting and close-out reports. 
5. Other responsibilities necessary for the completion of the Project in accordance with 

the plans and specifications. 
 
B.  Cost Estimate 

 
The District estimates the total cost for this Project will be $7,500,000. This estimate is based 
solely on the Architectôs most recent estimate of the total Project costs and is subject to change.  

 
C.  Financing 
 

The successful Contractor will be financing the construction of the Project through a lease-
leaseback arrangement at an interest rate equal to the Bank of American prime interest rate on 
the date of contract award, not to exceed 4.0%. The District will be paying Contractor for its 

construction and financing through monthly lease payments that will extend beyond the 
completion of the construction.  

 
D.  Scope of the Lump Sum Proposal; Proposed Budget 
 

The District will require an open book policy with the successful Contractor and its construction 
team on the entire Project, meaning that all costs included in the Contractorôs Total Sublease 
Amount and each monthly Sublease Payment shall be clearly set forth to the Districtôs 

satisfaction, including soft costs, site improvements, and the construction of the buildings. The 
District shall be entitled to have access to subcontractor bids, value engineering back-up, 
contingency breakdown and tracking, general conditions breakdown and tracking, 

documentation of Contractorôs fees, and all other information necessary to verify construction 
costs. 
 

The Project is subject to the payment of prevailing wages under the California Labor Code and 
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profit, and all of its costs of construction of the Work specified in the Contract Documents, 
including but not limited to the following: 

1. General conditions and general requirements, including but not limited to temporary 
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Contractor on the basis of the responses provided in the Contractorôs completed Prequalification 
application Contractorôs overall prequalification score. All Contractors achieving a minimally 
prequalifying score (75% on the prequalification application) will be scored pursuant to the 
following scale:   
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i. Contractor Solvency 

 
a. Describe your general approach to ensuring that your company remains 

solvent and is able to fulfill all payment obligations to sureties, 
subcontractors, suppliers, materialmen, and other vendors.  

 
b. How many projects does your company currently have under bond?  

 
c. What is your companyôs current total bonding capacity?  

 
d. What is your companyôs current available bonding capacity? 

 
e. Has your company been unable to obtain a bond for a contract in the past 

five years? If yes, please explain. 
 

f. Has your company ever declared bankruptcy or been placed in 
receivership? If yes, please explain. 

 
ii. History of Performance 

 
a. Using the form attached (Exhibit B) provide summaries of up to six (6) 

projects (including up to three (3) recent projects for the District, as 
applicable) completed by your company in the past ten years that are similar 
to the Scope of Work described in this RFP. For each project summary 
please provide the project name and client, a description of the scope of 
work, and a description of your role in the lifecycle of the project. If 
applicable, please specify if the project was a K-12 school project and/or 
conducted under Education Code section 17406, et seq. (i.e., a Lease-
Leaseback project). Provide examples of more than one owner to the extent 
possible. 

 
b. Describe your specific experience with K-12 public school projects 

conducted under Education Code section 17406, et seq. (i.e., Lease-
Leaseback projects). 

 
c. Describe your specific experience with projects subject to review and 

approval by the Division of the State Architect (ñDSAò), and further describe 
your general approach to working with DSA field inspectors to obtain 
necessary approvals.  

 
d. Describe your general approach to ensuring that projects are completed on 

time and within budget.  
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g. Describe your companyôs general approach to managing a project within the 

contract price, including specific methods to mitigate or avoid change orders 
and cost increases.  

 
h. Has your company ever failed to enter into a contract after being selected 

for a new school construction or modernization project? If yes, please 
explain. 

 
i. In the past five years, has your company failed to complete a contract within 

the authorized contract time? If yes, please explain. 
 

j. In the past five years, has your companyôs contract on a public works project 
been terminated or canceled by the public entity owner? If yes, please 
explain. 

 
k. In the past five years, has your company contracted on a public works 

project subject to a Project Labor Agreement?
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For the price proposal portion of the best value analysis, the District will evaluate the amount of 
Contractorôs lump sum price. The price proposal portion of the best value analysis will also be 
scored on a one hundred (100) point scale. District will score Contractors on the basis of the 
lowest to highest price proposal submitted. All Contractors submitting a price proposal will 
receive points, in increments of ten (10), based on the amount of the price proposal, with the 
Contractor with the lowest price proposal receiving the most points available and the Contractor 
with the highest price proposal receiving the fewest points available. Specifically, the Contractor 
with the lowest price proposal will receive 100 points, the Contractor with the second lowest 
price proposal will receive 90 points, the Contractor with the third lowest price proposal will 
receive 80 points, and so forth until all Contractor

http://www.scusd.edu/contracts-department
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EXHIBIT A 
Ranking of Best Value Scores 

 

 
SECTION I – CONTRACTOR QUALIFICATIONS 

 
In the follow table, enter all proposing Contractors and the total points received from the 

qualifications evaluation (Maximum points available per Contractor is 100).  
 

 
 
SECTION II – CONTRACTOR EXPERIENCE  
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SECTION III – LUMP SUM PRICES 

 
In the following table, enter all proposing Contractors based on their lump sum prices in order 
from lowest to highest. In the event two Contractors submit price proposals with the same 
overall price, both Contractors shall be awarded the same amount of points. (For example, if 
two Contractors submit a price proposal of exactly $1 million, which would qualify them both as 
the second lowest proposal, each Contractor shall receive 90 points.) 
 
 

 
 
SECTION IV – BEST VALUE SCORE 

 
In the following table, enter all proposing Contractors, their scores from Sections I, II and III and 
their total combined score. The total combined score is the Contractorôs ñbest value score.ò 

 
CONTRACTOR 
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EXHIBIT B 
 

SIMILAR PROJECTS (History of Performance) 
 

Project Owner/Contact Info Scope of Work Your Role  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   

 

     

 

     



- 15 - 

 

Project 
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EXHIBIT C 
PREQUALIFICATION CERTIFICATION 
FOR LEASE-LEASEBACK PROPOSAL 

 

I, _________________________, am authorized to represent _____________________ and 
sign this certification on its behalf to accompany the proposal that ____________________ is 
submitting for the West Campus Core Academic Renovation (ñProjectò).  
I certify and declare that: 

 _____________________________ was previously prequalified by the Sacramento City 
Unified School District (ñDistrictò) to submit bids and proposals on District public works 
projects; 

 The District, through QualityBidders, issued such prequalification on _____________, 
20__; 

 To the best of my knowledge, such prequalification has not expired; and 

 The scope of such prequalification covers the Project. 
 
In addition, I certify and declare that: (Choose one) 
 

 All information submitted by ___________________ in conjunction with its 
prequalification application is still accurate and complete, and requires no updated 
information. 
 

 Some of the answers and/or financial statements of _____________________ 
submitted in response to the previous prequalification questionnaire are no longer 
accurate and complete, and updated information is required. I understand that 
________________________ must re-prequalify pursuant to the Districtôs process for 
prequalification using updated, accurate and complete information. I further understand 
that if _______________________ does not become prequalified using updated, 
accurate, and complete information prior to submitting its proposal, the District reserves 
the right to discard and not consider my companyôs lease-leaseback proposal. 

 
I understand that any statement which is proven to be false shall be grounds for disqualification 
of _________________________icationic69.52 Tm
 -0.255 


